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1{EARINGS CLERX
EPA-~REGION 10

BEFORE THE
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

In the Matter of: DOCKET NO. CWA-10-2010-0001

CITY OF KENDRICK,
Kendrick, Idaho

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND
FINAL ORDER

LR N L N N e N

Respondent.

L. STATUTORY AUTHORITY

L.].  This Consent Agreement and Final Order (“CAFQ”) is issued under the authority
vested in the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™) by Section
309(g)(2)(B) of the Clean Water Act (“CWA™), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(2)(2)(B).

1.2, The Administrator has delegated the authority to issue the Final Order contained
in Part V of this CAFO to the Regional Administrator of EPA Region 10, who in turn has
redelegated this authority to the Regional Judicial Officer in EPA Region 10.

1.3.  Pursvant to Section 309(g)(1) and (g)(2)}(B), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(1) and
(2)(2)(B), and in accordance with the “Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the

Admuinistrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,” 40 C.F.R. Part 22, EPA hereby issues, and the
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City of Kendnick (“Kendrick™) hereby agrées to issuance of, the Final Order contained in Part V
of this CAFO.
11. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

2.1.  Inaccordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.45(b), issuance of this CAFO
commences this proceeding which will conclude when the Final Order contained in Part V of
this CAFO becomes effective.

2.2, Part 1IT of this CAFO contains a concise statement of the factual basis for the
alleged violatnions of the CWA, together with the specific provisions of the CWA and
implementing regulations that Kendrick is alleged to have violated.

III.  ALLEGATIONS

3.1.  CWA Section 301(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the “discharge of any
pollutants by any person” except as authorized by a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (“NPDES”) permit issued pursuant to CWA Section 402, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. Section
504(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12), defines the term “discharge of a pollutant” 1o
include “any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters from any point source.” “Navigable
waters” are defined as “waters of the United States.” 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7).

3.2.  Kendrick is a municipality organized under the laws of the State of ldaho and,
thus, is a “person” as defined in Section 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5).

3.3, Kendrick owns and operates a wastewater treatment facility (“Facility”) located in|
Kendnck, [daho.

3.4.  Kendrick is authorized to discharge municipal wastewater containing pollutants
from the Facility pursuant to NPDES Permit No. ID-002455-4 (*Permit”). The Permit expires

on March 31, 2010.
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! 3.5, The Facility, which was ander Kendrick s cantrol at all times relevant to i,

pespollutars frorn Outtal] 001, which is Jooated at lathinde 48° 367 31 Northand
3§ lengitude 116% 397 537 Wast Outfall 001 is 2 “pointacurog” within the meaning of Saction

4 150201y of the CWA, 33 USC § 1362(14).

5 36, The Facilty discharges municipal wastewater containing pollutants into the

G Potiatch River, The Potlatch Hiveris g “naxf_ég;«;big. water” withinthe meaning of Secton 302(7)
7 Hof the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1362(7), and is a “;vaz:ﬁriof'the United States” within the meaning of 40

8 HCFR.§122.%

Q 3.7 Sectons LA of the Permis ssiablish efflvent Hsitarions for the dischorge from
1 HOutfall 001, These effluent Bmiistions include, but are nof lodled 1o, Homits for bitchemicat

1 Hoxygen demand ("BOD™Y, wtal suspended solids ("TSS7), 1otal msidual chiorine ("TRCY), pH

12 tand Escherichia coli (CF. coli™

13 3.8 Becrion LB. of the Permivesiablishes Inforim effuent mitations for TRC ai

14 ||with a compliance schedule for TRC. Section 1.B.1 of the Permit reguires Kendrick (o come into]
13 {icompliance with the final TRC effluent limitations set forth in Section LA of the Permit by

16 {1 Septembuer 1, 2008,

Y 3.9, Seciion [IB of the Pesmy requires Kendrick (o summarize monitoring results for
1% 1 the Facility each month in a Disclizrge Monitoring Report {“DME™).

19 310, Kendnek’s DMBs froon April 2005 to March 2009 indicate thar the Padiliny had
<0 1 1427 wiclations'of the efflvent Lmitations set forth in the Pernut. When o pernitice excerds a
21 I monthly average effluent limit, the permitiee 1s deemed to be i violation of fhat effiuent Hmit
22 1ieach of the days of the ronth in which the vi;)iazjm weeurzed. When 4 pﬁfzz;iz_mﬁ*é-x.z:iz‘:&fﬁ@,zaz

23 || weekly average effluent Emif, the exceedance is counted as seven violations. When a permitiee

24 J1exceeds 3 daily maxamum effluent limit, the exceedance 18 counted as one violation.

T8 Bieth Avenue, Sutie 200
Beaitle, Washington 98181
{2663 5331037
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3.11. Section LA. of the Permit contains an average monthly concentration effluent
limit for BOD in discharges from the Facility of 30 mg/L. Between April 2005 and March 2009,
Kendrick violated the average monthly concentration effluent limit for BOD a total of nine (9)

months, totaling 277 violations. The violations are as follows:

~ Month of Violation | Number of Violafions

December 2005 31 '
January 2006 31
March 2006 31
May 2006 31
June 2006 30
January 2008 31
November 2008 < 30
December 2008 30
March 2009 31

3.12.  Section LA of the Permit contains an average weekly concentration effluent limit
for BOD in discharges from the Facility of 45 mg/L. Between April 2005 and March 2009,
Kendrick violated the average weekly concentration effluent limit for BOD a total of six (6)

weeks, constituting 42 violations. The violations are as follows;

Month of Violation | Number of Violations
December 2005 | ? : . =
March 2006 7
June 2006 7
January 2008 7
5

7

November 2008
December 2008

3.13.  Section 1. A of the Permit contains an average monthly mass effluent limit for

BOD in discharges from the Facility of 20 lbs/day. Between April 2005 and March 2009,

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER - 4 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
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Kendrick violated the average monthly mﬁss effluent limit for BOD in March 2006, constituting
31 violations.

3.14. Section LA of the Permit contains a monthly average removal requirement for
BOD in discharges from the Facility that requires that the monthly average effluent
concentration does not exceed 15 percent (15%) of the monthly average influent concentration.
Between April 2005 and March 2009, Kendrick violated the monthly average removat
requirement for BOD a total of nineteen (19) months, consututing 575 violations. The violations

are as follows:

‘Monthof Violation | Number of Violations
May 2005 31
June 2005 T30
December 2005 3
January 2006 31
February 2006 28
March 2006 31
May 2006 31
June 2006 30
December 2006 31
February 2007 28
March 2007 31
January 2008 31
February 2008 29
March 2008 31
May 2008 31
November 2008 30
December 2008 31
February 2009 28
March 2009 31
CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER - 5 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
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3.15. Section LA of the Permit ¢ontains an average monthly concentration effluent limi|
for TSS in discharges from the Facility of 45 mg/L.. Betweea April 2005 and March 2009,
Kendrick violated the average monthly concentration effluent limit for TSS a total of four (4)

months, constituting 124 violations. The violations are as follows:

Mo oF Vilaion | Numberor Vioions
March 2006 31
May 2006 31
March 2008 31
March 2009 31

3.16.  Section LA of the Permut contains an average weekly concentration effluent limit
for TSS in discharges from the Facility of 65 mg/L. Between April 2005 and March 2009,
Kendrick violated the average weekly concentration effluent limit for TSS a total of four {4)

weeks, constituting 21 violations. The violations are as follows:

Month of Violation | Number of Violations
March 2006 | 7 o
May 2006 y
March 2008 7

3.17. Section 1.A of the Permit contains an average weekly mass effluent limit for TSS
in discharges from the Facility of 43 lbs/day. Between April 2005 and March 2009, Kendrick
violated the average weekly mass effluent limit for TSS in March 2009, constituting 7 violations.

3.18.  Section LA of the Permit contains an average monthly mass effluent limit for TSS
in discharges from the Facility of 30 Ibs/day. Between April 2005 and March 2009, Kendrick

violated the average monthly mass effiuent limit for TSS in March 2006, constituting 31

violations.
CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER - 6 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
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3.19. Section [.A of the Permit contains a roonthly average removal requirement for
TSS in discharges from the Facility that requires that the monthly average effluent concentration
does not exceed 35 percent (35%) of the monthly average influent concentration. Between April
2005 and March 2009, Kendrick violated the monthly average removal requirement for TSS a

total of seven (7) months, constituting 211 violations. The violations are as follows:

* March 2006 N
May 2006 31
February 2007 28
March 2007 31
March 2008 < 31
February 2009 28
March 2009 31

- 3.20.  Section LA of the Permit contains an average monthly effluent limit for E. coli
bacteria in discharges from the Facility of 126 colonies/100 mL. Between April 2005 and March
2009, Kendrick ;riolaled l:-he average monthly effluent limit for E. coli bacteria in July 2006,
constituting 31 violations.

3.21.  Section LA of the Permit contains an instantaneous maximum limit for E. coli
bacteria in discharges from the Facility of 406 colonies/100 mL. Between April 2005 and March
2009, Kendrick violated the instantaneous maximum limit for £. coli bacteria a total of six (6)

times, constituting six (6) violations.

SH S E  R

.hmc 2005

April 2006 [

May 2006 !

July 2006 1

January 2008 2
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3.22. Section LB of the Permit contains an interim average monthly concentration
efflueni limit for TRC in discharges from the Facility of 0.5 mg/L.. The interim average monthly
conceniration effluent limit was appiicable until September 2008 when the Facility was required
to be in compliance with the final effluent limitations set forth in Section LA of the Permit.
Between April 2005 and September 2008, Kendrick violated the interim average monthly
concentration effluent limit for TRC a total of two (2) months, constituting 61 violations. The

violations are as follows:

Month of Violation | Number of Violations
April 2005 30
May 2005 Y

3.23. Section I.B of the Permit contains an interim maximum daily concentration
effluent limit for TRC in discharges from the Facility of 0.75 mg/L. The interim maximum daily
concentration effluent limit was applicable until September 2008 when the Facility was required
to be in compliance with the final effluent limitations set forth in Section [.A of the Permit.
Between April 2005 and September 2008, Kendrick violated the interim maximum daily
concentration effluent limit for TRC in May 2005, constituting one (1) violation.

3.24.  Section LA of the Permit contains a maximum daily concentration effluent limit
for TRC in discharges from the Facility of 0.018 mg/L. This maximum daily concentration
effluent limit went into effect in September 2008. Between September 2008 and March 2009,
Kendrick violated the maximum daily concentration effluent limit a total of three (3) times,

constituting three (3) violations. The violations are as follows:

‘Month of Violation |  Number of Violations'
November 2008 L
CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER - 8 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
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anuary 20 |
March 2009 |

3.25. Section [.A of the Permit contains a maximum daily mass effluent limit for TRC
in discharges from the Facility of 0.012 Ibs/day. This maximum daily mass effluent limit went
into effect in September 2008. Between September 2008 and March 2009, Kendrick violated the
maximum daily mass effluent limit in March 2009, constituting one (1) viclation.

3.26. Section LA of the Permit requires that the pH in discharges from the Facility be in
the range of 6.5 — 9.0 standard units. Between April 2005 and March 2009, Kendrick violated
the pH limit a total of five (5) times, constituting five (5) wolations. The violations are as

follows:

June 2006
January 2008
January 2009

February 2009

3.27.  Under Section 309(g)(1) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C § 1319(g)(1), EPA may assess an
admunistrative penalty when EPA finds that “any person ... has violated any permit condition or
Jimitations ... in a permit issued” pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. The
permit violations alleged for the Facility constitute violations of Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33
US.C. § 1311(a). Consequently, under Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the CWA,33 US.C. §
1319(2)(2)(B), Kendrick is liable for the administrative assessment of civil penalties for
violations at the Facility in an amount not to exceed $16,000 per day for each day during which

the violation continues, up to a maximum amount of $177,500.

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER -9 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
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IV. CONSENT AGREEMENT

4.1.  Kendrick stipulates that EPA has jurisdiction over the subject matter alleged
herein.

4.2.  As required under Section 309(g)(3) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(3), EPA
has taken into a;ccount the nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the alleged violations as
well as Kendrick's economic benefit of noncompliance, ability to pay, and other relevant factors.
After considering all of these factors, EPA has determined and Kendrick agrees that an
appropriate penalty to settle this action is in the amount of Three Thousand Five Hundred
Dollars ($3,500.00).

4.3.  Kendrick neither admits nor denies the spgcific factual allegations contained in
Part IIT of this CAFO.

4.4.  Kendrick consents to issuance of the Final Order set forth in Part V, below, and
agrees 1o pay the total civil penalty set forth in Paragraph 4.2, above, within thirty (30) days of
the éffectivc date of the Final Order.

4.5.  Payment under this CAFO shall be made by cashier's check or certified check
payable to the order of “Treasurer, United States of America" and delivered to the following
address:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

PO Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

Kendrick shall note on the check the title and docket number of this action.

4.6.  Kendrick shall serve photocopies of the check described in Paragraph 4.5, above,
on the Regional Hearing Clerk and EPA Region 10 Office of Compliance and Enforcement at

the foliowing addresses:

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER - 10 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
DOCKET NO. CWA-10-2010-0001 1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900
Seattle, Washington 98101
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- Regiooal Hearing Cihrlx
{15, Envirommental Protection A“ez‘zcy
Rwazm 10, MS-ORC-158%
1200 Sixth &Vdn;‘m, Suite: Qf}i}
Seaitle, WA 98101 ~ .

Gifieeof ch;:‘;anl.ifa_ncc and Enforcement
r’\'i«; 1'"»' DZ&"\? id' I}O friin i'ff'ij

Reglo{* 1{3 MS DC .....
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 901’“!
Seattle, WA 98101

4.7.  If Kendrick fails thpay. the p&nalty'asmsaed bv this CAFO i full by the dae date.

set forth in Pdmwmph 4.4, ahove, tiﬂe antire meazd balance: of '{3&:]‘1&5‘.15‘ and avcroed mzas:est sh&jl

become: zr.zz.m@dmely dize- md owing. It Kenm Uk f&j]b e Qay e ;’?wn;}i{y assessed; Kendrick |

may be subj«,r:{ 1o 4 ¢ivil action to collect. thf.’( assmsad pmalt} under the CWA, fowmer w:zh

the amounts described below:

4.8.1. Iﬁt:@r&-st. Parsuant (o Sectzan 309(g (&}) of ihe OWA, 331, S C‘

1319(g¥ 9), any unwd pcmnn of. [hc a%csaad {Jmﬁ&lt}’ shall bear ma:est a3y z‘a{a : :;: .

within thirty (30) days of iilﬁ effective date of tﬁe qu;}i Orczm

-_fn'{aax;men{ Pemzln Pursua"zi 10

4.8.2. Afoimevs, .%t*f%% v Co.l;lec.tmzz Loosis

Section 309(2)(9) of the CWA, 33 UL § inQ(g;(‘}), 1f Kendnc& fails to pav

il 1.8, Environmental Protéciion Agency
1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 500
Seatile, Washington Y8101
{206} S53.1037-
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the amwoant of the penglty set forth in Paragraph 4.3, above,

Kendrick shail pay {in addition to any assessed penalty and interest) attorneys fees
guarter during which such Sdlore to pay persists, Such nonpayment penally shall

be in an amount equal 1o twenty percent {20%) of the aggregate amount of

5. The penaley descz-‘%‘%}%ﬁ:’%ﬁé in Pardgraph 4.2, above, including any additional costs
incarred under Paragraph 4.8, above, represents an adninistiative oivil penally assessed by BPA
and shall not be deductible for purposes of federal taxes. .

410 The undersignegd reprosentative of Kendrick certities that he or she is fully
authonzed 1o enter into the terms and conditions of this CAFQ and o bind Kendrick to this
document.

411 Except as described in Subparagraph 4.8.2, above, cach party shall bear its own
costs in bringing or defending this action.

432, Kendrick e;xgé'zrﬁ:gx}y walves any rights 10 conlest the allegations and waives any

right to appeal the Final Ovder set forth in Part V, below.

413, The provisions of this CAFO shall bind Kendrick and its agenis, servanis,

Lmiplovess, successors; and assigns,

414, The above provisions are STIPULATED AND AGREED upon by Keadrick and
EPA,

LLE. Envivenmental Protection Ageny
1200 Sipth Avepue, Soile 805
Beatile, Washington 8101

{208} 23-1037
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DATED: CITY OF KENDRICK:

N )
-5k 67 A pg.p/JJ ’
Signature '
Print Name: 282/ G L. sker

Title: z?’f’;-’-f’/vﬂ =

DATED: U.S, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

EDWARD J. KOWALSKI

Director

Office of Compliance and Enforcement
For Complainant

Y. FINAL ORDER

5.1. The terms of the foregoing Parts [-IV are hereby ratified and incorporated by
reference into this Final Order. Kendrick is hereby ordered to comply with the foregoing terms
of the settlement.

5.2.  This CAFO shall constituie a settlement by EPA of all claims for civil penalties
pursuant to the CWA for the violations alleged in Part II1, above. In accordance with 40 C.F.R.
§ 22.31(a), nothing in this CAFO shall affect the right of EPA or the United States or pursue
appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law.
This CAFO does not waive, extinguish or otherwise affect Kendrick's obligations to comply
with all applicable provisions of the CWA, applicable CW A regulations, and/or any permits

issued thereunder.

t
CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER - 13 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
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DATED: CITY OF KENDRICK:

Signature
Print Name:

Title:

DATED: U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

Director

Office of Compliance and Enforcement
For Complainant

V. FINAL ORDER

5.1. The terms of the foregoing Parts [-IV are hereby ratified and incorporated by
reference into this Final Order. Kendrick is hereby ordered to comply with the foregoing terms
of the settlement.

5.2.  This CAFO shail constitute a settlement by EPA of all claims for civil penalties
pursuant to the CWA for the violations allcged in Part III, above. In accordance with 40 C.F.R.
§ 22.31(a), nothing in this CAFO shall affect the right of EPA or the United States or pursue
appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law.
This CAFO does not waive, extinguish or otherwise affect Kendrick's obligations to comply
with all applicable provisions of the CWA, applicable CW A regulations, and/or any permits

1ssued thereunder.
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5.3, Inaccordance with Section LY e of the CWA, ZAURLC £ 1318, and

3gain£z Kendrick.
54, Pursuant o Section 309(g)(4)A) of the CWA, 33 US.C.§ 1310(gHdYA), EPA.
has published public netice of s inlent 1o assess an adminigtrative penaliy apainst Kendeick snd

e invite public comunent in accordance with 40 CFER. § 2245, More thay forty (40) days have

clapsed singe the isspance-ol this public notice, and EPA has received no petition o set aside the

Consent Agreement contuined herein,

55, This Final Order shall become effective wpon g

, 2009,

?g«i@xm v E»%E‘a’%éiééz
'-Rt*monﬁl Judiciai Of; flacs el

1.8, Bevironmental Protection Agency
 Region 10
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned certifies that the original of the attached CONSENT AGREEMENT
AND FINAL ORDER in In the Matter of: City of Kendrick, DOCKET NO.: CWA-10-
2010-0001 was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on October 15, 2009.

On October 15, 2009 the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the
document was delivered to:

Courtney Weber, Esquire

US Environmental Protection Agency

1200 Sixth Avenue, ORC-158

Suite 900

Seattle, WA 98101

Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the aforementioned
document was placed in the United States mail certified/return receipt on October 15, 2009, to:

Mayor Dale G. Lisher
City of Kendrick

P.O. Box 195
Kendrick, ID 83537

DATED this 15™ day of October 2009.

&

Carol Kennedy
Regional Hearing Clerk
EPA Region 10



